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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AMD ORIGINAL (iFf KNOWN) FHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Kerr Mill, a substantial brick structure, is pleasantly situated in a wide creek
bottom surrounded by rolling hills in a rich farming area of Rowan County. The two-story
structure, three bays wide and two deep, rests on a stone foundation which is hardly
vigible on the front but is exposed to form a full basement on the rear or creek side of
the building. The brick, well finished with closers, is laid in four-to-one bond. Facades
rerminate in well-executed molded brick cornices. The three-bay main facade has a central
entrance consisting of a heavy board-and-batten Dutch door, surmounted by a three-light
transom. A simple molded door frame is neatly set into the thick brick wall. The door
iz surmounted by a handsome gauged brick flat arch and there is a well worn stone docr sill.
Flanking the door are windows with six-over-nine sash, also set into simply molded frames,
with stone sills and similar brick flat arches. This window treatment recurs throughout
the first floor. The window to the right of the door has batten shutters consisting of
two vertical boards in each leaf joined by a horizontal board near the top and bortom;
the shutters are held in place by strap hinges hung on pintles.

Directly above the central entrance is a large batten door with stone sill below and
flat arch above. Since there 1s no evidence of a porch, this door was probably used forv
nading and unloading. The second-floor windows, which repeat the stone sills and molded
fv

ames oi the first level, have six-over-six sash and flat arches one brick high.

P

Both of the two-bay gable ends have two large openings in the gables. 7The south end
eat

nas two windows with six-over-six sash, and the north end has one window to the rear and
a batten door for londing to the front. On the first floor of the south end is a doocr; .
orherwise the fenestvation is like the front. The rear fenestration is similar to the
chinney

fro1 but lacks doors, except for the basement level. There .is an.interior end
in the novth gable, but the stack is broken to the roofline.

The intevrior appears originally to have had one large voom at each level, although
some partition walls have been added. The heavy timber framing is sawn and chamfered with
lamb's fongues, The interior walls are exposed brick and over each door and window are
wooden lintels with gupportive blind arches above., The only heat in the building was
previded by cne unadorned fire opening in the north wall of the first floor. The mill
is not in working order mnow but all floore and the basement are filled with milling
aquipment. The equipment on the second floor and attic appears to be predominantly
ruentieth century while the material stored in the basement may be earlier. The floors
have various shaped holes, rveflecting where belts, shafts and wooden pipes have passed
thirougn doring different stages in the operation. In the twentieth century, the mill
gteam-povered; this equipment has been dismantled. Mo remnants of its water pover
souTce remain ia place, though there was once a large mill pond (now a field).
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% 15600-1893 __COMMERCE __EXFLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
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__INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF GIG HpAd(t
The Kert ii‘? in Rowan County is an unusually handsoms and substantial brick grist
mill, one of the few brick antebellum grist wmills in the state. Evidently coanstructed
for Jozeph ¥err in the earlw 1820s, it was vun by his son, Dr. Samuel [lerr, during much
H r
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of the Lil teenth o v, prodacing 360 barrels of flour and 3,000 bushels of corw m=al
in 1850 and 1,300 bavvels of flour in 1860. The nill, which was operated until the 1940s,
is to-be rehabilitated~ as a local pres ervarion project, s : :

on Kerr Creek mear the community of 1Millbridge in Rowan County, the gt
mill ihan beavs the nama of Doctor Samuel kofr was in existence in 1824, IL that -
refevence o "Kerv's Mill" on "kerr Creek' appears in county road overseer ordervs. TLocal

i :
clajms that Samuel Kerr built the mill in the 1820s, but since Samuel Kerr
as owning taxable property before 1530, it is move 1ikely that his father,
built the mill probably sometinma between 1820 and 1824.

Joaeph
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Kerr Craele on which the Kerr Mill'is located was kpown in the 17905 as "Carhey's

Will Creel’™ on "Cathey's Creek! named for James Cathey, head of a larze landholding family
iq Fowan County at that time. Joseph Kery received land on Cathef?s Creek in three

iWfferent deeds, the fivst in 1791 and rhe second two on Februarvy 3, 1796. Because the
land granted in these deeds was divided according to landmarks that are now obscure, 1t do
not ehsolurely cecrain which documsnt refervred to the mill site. In all probahiliiy,
Lhowever, the mill location was included in a deed of February 3, 1795, granted to Joseph
sihev Samuel Kerr (Dr. Kerr's wocle). Although this land transaction does
mbey of acrmh awarded to Joseph Hevr, it does list the tract of land as
Jeuca‘ Cathey' whose land bovdered on the site of Kevr's Mill

=

diad in 1829, and in his w1l1 wro& 2. in that yeav he divided his

¥ County awmong his sons, i amuel, and his Jd-ughter Mavy. His
¢ county conalsted of 1,500 acres of land valued at $7,000, two town lots
Ly and laves." ro of the land evidently dncloded

vl Cath . T Andvrew and John, as well as a

-]

l}»&uﬁ Wilson, received land nedr the Missizsippl Piver.
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The Rowan County physician was a wealthv man. In addition to Samuel Kerr's vast
landholdings in Mississippi and Tennessece as well as North Cavolina, he owned fifty-one
slaves in 1860. In that year the value of his real estate was placed at $228,200 and
his personal estate at $171,820. He also possessed considerable stock in the North
Carolina Railvoad Company. The 1350 census indicates that after the death of his mother,
ne lived alone with the exception of Dr. Francis M. Luckey, with whom he shared his
nedical practice for a short time, and an overseer named Stanhope J. Brown. By 1860
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